
Sodium Reduction in Communities
CDC-RFA-DP13-1301
Frequently Asked Questions


1. [bookmark: _GoBack]Is it true that we can only submit appendices listed as “Optional Attachments” on p. 42 Section H of the FOA?  For example, can we submit supporting documents demonstrating a sample compliance form for project partners, or membership lists for our collaborative coalitions?
Answer:  Only those attachments listed in Section F “Other Information” are allowed.  Please refer to pages 41& 42 of the FOA for the list of document that can be uploaded as part of the www.grants.gov application as PDF files. Other than the addition of the “Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan” to this list, applicants may not attach any other documents. If applicants do so, they will not be reviewed. 
2. Can States apply in collaboration with more than two communities?

Answer: States must apply with at least two communities and can apply in collaboration with more than two communities if desired.  The page limits and funding ceiling remain as stated in the FOA.

3. How many communities will be funded?

Answer: The ceiling for individual award range is: $250,000 for Large County/City/Township applicants and $350,000 for State Coordinated applicants and American Indian/Native American Tribal Governments. The number of communities funded will depend on the amount of available funding and the number and types of applicants that compete successfully.  

4. Will technical assistance be available regarding the FOA and the process to submit an application?

Answer: A technical assistance conference call will take place May 13, 2013 from 2:00-3:00 PM U.S. Eastern Time.  At this time, the Division for Heart Disease and Stroke Prevention (DHDSP) will review the FOA in detail for participants. Potential applicants may continue to ask questions of the Procurements and Grants Office (PGO) and DHDSP by submitting questions to Kristy Mugavero.  Questions and Answers will be posted on the website at http://www.cdc.gov/salt/foa.htm. Technical assistance regarding electronic submissions will be provided by www.grants.gov staff as needed.

5. I missed the FOA conference call on May 13, 2013. Is there a way for me to access the recordings for these calls?

Answer: No.  This call was not recorded.  Questions and Answers from the call were posted on the website at http://www.cdc.gov/salt/foa.htm. 

6. Is there a template available for preparing the Letter of Intent (LOI)?

Answer: No. The FOA instructs that all those intending to apply submit brief statements with the following information (must be postmarked by): May 20, 2013.
a. Descriptive title of proposed project
b. Name, address, telephone number, and email address of the Principal Investigator/Project Director
c. Name, address, telephone number, and email address of the primary contact for writing and submitting this application
d. Number and title of this funding opportunity 

7. High blood pressure control is not specifically mentioned in the FOA. Will it count against an applicant if they include interventions related to high blood pressure as long as they address the required strategies? 

Answer: With funding through this FOA, applicants are asked to focus on population efforts to reduce sodium.  It is acceptable to include high blood pressure control efforts as long as they align with the objectives and outcomes of this FOA.

8. Is cost sharing or matching required?

Answer: Cost sharing or matching funds are not required for this program. Although there is no statutory match requirement for this FOA, leveraging other resources and related ongoing efforts to promote sustainability is strongly encouraged.

9. What is a cross site evaluation?

Answer: A cross-site evaluation is an evaluation that looks across the funded communities (i.e., sites) to identify themes, patterns, achievements, and barriers.  The purpose of a cross-site evaluation is not to compare funded communities against each other, but to identify common lessons across the communities while also recognizing that each community has unique characteristics and context.  The cross-site evaluation of the funded communities will be primarily focused on outcomes and the extent to which the FOA-identified outcomes have been achieved.  While implementation of lessons learned will also be included in the cross-site evaluation, process measures are not a primary focus for this FOA.  

10. How much time does CDC Program provide to support awardees?

 Answer: CDC will provide substantial support and technical assistance to grantees.

11. How will applications be reviewed?

Answer: All eligible applications will be initially reviewed for completeness by CDC’s Procurement and Grants Office (PGO) staff. In addition, eligible applicants will be jointly reviewed for responsiveness by CDC’s National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion and PGO.  Incomplete applications and applications that are non-responsive to the eligibility criteria will not advance to the next phase of the review. Applicants will be notified that the application did not meet eligibility and/or published submission requirements.  An objective review panel will evaluate complete and responsive applications according to the criteria listed in the criteria section of the FOA.  Applications will be funded in order by score and rank determined by the review panel. In addition, CDC reserves the right to fund applications out of rank order depending on the distribution of sodium reduction interventions across venues and the geographic distribution of the highest scoring applications.  CDC may fund out of rank order to achieve geographic and/or programmatic diversity. CDC will notify applicants that are approved but unfunded and unapproved applicants during the same period when funded applicants are notified. Letters are sent to applicants by PGO. Approved but unfunded applications remain valid for one year and may be funded if additional resources become available. 

12. With regard to including two city/county or rural community sub-applicants – do we need to specifically identify these communities prior to application? Or can we plan to submit an RFP once awarded to determine which communities we would sub-contract with?
Answer: Each State-Coordinated Application must include at least 2 small city/county   or rural community sub-applicants. The sub-applicants should be identified in the application.   Please refer to page 11 of the FOA for required organizational capacity to execute award. 
13. Sodium Reduction in Communities, what is the anticipated project period for the DP13-1301: Sodium Reduction in Communities FOA?

Answer: The anticipated project period is September 30, 2013 – September 29, 2016. Please refer to page 19 of the FOA for award information.

14. For the Evaluation Plan on page 32, the FOA states that the proposal must include an evaluation plan and that “this plan should be no more than 15 pages.”  1) Do those 15 pages count as part of the 18 pages allotted for the full project narrative?  2) If yes, should these 15 pages be single or double spaced? 

Answer: The 15 pages for the evaluation and performance measurement plan is separate from the 18 pages of the full project narrative.  The evaluation plan may be single or double spaced.

15. For the Work Plan on page 31, it says that there is a maximum of 10 pages per community.  Are those 10 pages in addition to the 18 pages allotted for the project narrative?  

 Answer: The work plan is separate from the full project narrative.

16. Regarding evaluation costs, if a State DOH is applying to work with 2 small counties that might not have access to acceptable evaluation expertise, can the state DOH directly provide evaluation support to the counties AND can those costs be counted as part of the 70% of the grant that must be directed to the counties?

Answer: The state applicant may provide evaluation support to sub-awardees.  70% of funds must be disseminated to sub-awardees.  

17. Do the requirements for the intermediate performance measures* apply to work in both selected venues, or can the requirement be satisfied through outcome evaluation of interventions in one of the venues? (*Average daily sodium intake, or % and # of people who have reduced average daily sodium intake, or % # of people at or below recommended guidelines for average daily intake.)

Answer: The requirement for intermediate performance measures applies to both selected venues.

18. For the intermediate outcome measure (“reduce sodium intake”) is CDC expecting applicants to conduct dietary recalls with a sample of participants?

Answer: CDC will work with awardees to operationalize the required outcome performance measures and assist with the identification of sound data collection approaches and/or the availability of existing data collection instruments. 

19. The FOA states that applicants will identity two venues in which to focus their sodium reduction efforts.  Is it acceptable to choose government worksites as one venue, and congregate meal sites, which might include multiple settings (e.g. probations and senior meals) as the two venues?

Answer: This will count as two venues.  Government worksites could be considered one venue; Government program s that purchase and provide food to congregate populations could be another venue, if these programs are separate from the worksite programs.

20. Are local health departments (i.e., sub-awardees) required to contract out with local organizations in the community?

Answer: Sub-awardees are not required to contract with other organizations.  Sub-awardees may contract out with other organizations.  Any contractual agreements must be provided in the budget justification.  

21. Does the term “non-chain” restaurant apply to just national chains?  Is it okay if a restaurant has more than one location?

Answer: This is referring to national/regional chains.  If a local restaurant or group of restaurants has the local authority to make changes, these would be acceptable venues in which to work. 

22.  The logic model does not print properly.

 Answer: The logic model has been posted to the website.

23. Please confirm expectations of the evaluation plan.  The FOA states a 15 page maximum for initial plan and that a revised plan must be submitted 120 days after the award.  Is the 15 page revised plan in addition to the initial plan?

Answer:  No. The initial plan may not exceed 15 pages.  Following the award, CDC will work with awardees to refine evaluation plans if necessary. This more detailed evaluation and performance measurement plan should be developed by awardees with support from CDC as part of first year project activities. This more detailed evaluation plan will build on the elements stated in the initial plan and the intervention-specific logic models, but will not be in addition to the initial plan.  

24. Can state health department’s award sub-awards to more than 2 sub-grantees?

Answer: Yes.  State Health Departments can contract with more than 2 sub-grantees.   The funding ceiling will not change based on the number of sub-grantees.

25. Does a state health department have to contract with local health departments, or can we contract out with other community organizations?

Answer: For this announcement, the term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below.  

26. Are existing SRCP grantees eligible to apply for continuation funding?  Will existing SRCP grantees receive preference for funding?

Answer: Current SRCP funding will end September 29, 2013.  No continuation opportunity will be offered.  The new SRCP (DP 13-1301) will be open to all eligible entities.  Current SRCP grantees will have to apply according to the same criteria as all other applicants.

27. Are hospitals separate from independent restaurants?

Answer: Hospitals are considered one venue; independent restaurants (i.e.: non-chain) restaurants are considered another venue.

28. Are applicants able to propose building on current work related to sodium reduction?

Answer: Yes, applicants may propose to build on and expand existing initiatives.  Applicants will be scored based on existing capacity to execute activities.

29. Are school districts considered a venue?

Answer: Schools are not listed as a priority venue under this FOA.  However applicants may propose to work in ta venue beyond the priority venues listed in the FOA.  Applicant must provide sufficient justification for working in any other venue by describing the potential reach and impact, and evidence that supports working in this venue.  Preference will be given to applicants who propose to work in at least one priority venue.  

30. Is it appropriate to use funding for salaries for personnel working on sodium reduction efforts?

Answer: There is nothing in the FOA that would prohibit this expense.

31. If the evaluation plan is supposed to be separate from the project narrative, how should the evaluation plan be submitted?

 Answer: Applicants may upload a separate evaluation plan attachment in grants.gov. 

32. Our jurisdiction is part of a local government, but our worksite activities expand into a different governmental jurisdiction.  May we use funding to impact this entire area?

Answer: Applicants have the option to identify populations in their jurisdiction or community based on relevant criteria such as health risk or public health impact.

33. Is matching required?

Answer: Matching is not required. Applicants are encouraged to leverage funds from other sources.

34. If we applied for the collaborative chronic grant, can we propose to expand upon the work we proposed in that grant?

Answer: Applicants are required to work with multiple organizational units within the Health Department to advance program outcomes.  To the extent appropriate and synergistic, programs should collaborate with their Nutrition, Physical Activity, and Obesity (NPAO) Programs; Cardiovascular Health Programs; Worksite Wellness Programs, Racial and Ethnic Approaches to Health (REACH) Programs, and any other programs that have similar outcome objectives.

35. Is the FOA, CDC-RFA-DP13-1301, funded from Affordable Care Act funding?
Answer: No, CDC-RFA-DP13-1301 is not funded from Affordable Care Act Funding.
 
36. Is there is a specific reason that schools were not included in the possible venues? 

Answer: Although schools are not listed as a priority venue (pages 2 and 7), applicants may propose to work in a venue beyond the priority venues listed. Applicant must provide sufficient justification for working in any other venue by describing the potential reach and impact, and evidence that supports working in this venue.  Preference will be given to applicants who propose to work in at least one priority venue.  

37. For the intermediate outcome: “Average Daily Intake,” is CDC looking for quantitative sodium intake or would a questionnaire work to collect this information?

Answer:  CDC will work with awardees to operationalize the required outcome performance measures and assist with the identification of sound data collection approaches and/or the availability of existing data collection instruments. 

38. If our State does not have a local or county health department, (i.e., our Department of Health serves as both a state and a local health department), are we eligible to apply for $350,000 per year as a state coordinated applicant?  Can we sub-contract directly with another state agency that purchases and provides food to congregate populations?

Answer: In accordance with the Special Eligibility Requirements in the FOA, If a state applies as a state coordinated entity, then they MUST include at least 2 small city/county or rural community sub applicants not another state agency.  If a state does not have local health departments, the state may apply in collaboration with at least 2 other small city/ county or rural community sub-applicants.

39. Does a tribal Community Health Department in a Tribal Clinic qualify?  I noted in an email that Eligible applicants include State Health Departments, Tribal Governments, County Governments, etc. 

Answer: American Indian/Alaska Native Tribal Governments (Federally Recognized) are eligible applicants.

40. If our State only has two local health departments, but it has city or parish government offices that lead health initiatives for their jurisdiction. One Mayor’s office is working on initiatives similar to those in this FOA, but they are not technically a local health department.  Can they be sub-awardees?

Answer: In accordance with FOA and the definitions of “small city/county and rural”, the sub-applicants must be local health departments.  The inquiry indicated that the Mayor’s office is not a local health department.  Therefore, they would not be considered sub-applicants per this FOA. If a state does not have local health departments, the state may apply in collaboration with at least 2 other small city/ county or rural community sub-applicants.

41. Is use of a bona fide agent acceptable for this FOA?

Answer: The bona fide agent is applicable to state health departments, county health departments, and city or township health departments. Please refer to page 21 of the FOA for additional eligibility information.

42. Is this open for the Pacific Island Jurisdiction, or do we have to wait for CDC's decision regarding the proposed FOA? 

Answer: The following organizations are eligible to apply for the new Sodium Reduction in Communities FOA:
1. State* Health Departments (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the Governor
1. American Indian/Native American Tribal Governments (Federally Recognized) 
1. County Health Departments (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the mayor, county executive, or other equivalent governmental official (with jurisdictions over 500,000)
1. City or Township Health Departments (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the mayor, county executive, or other equivalent governmental official (with jurisdictions over 500,000)

*For this announcement, the term “State” includes the 50 states and the District of Columbia.

43. Who is eligible to apply for funding? 

Answer: The following organizations are eligible to apply:  
a. State Health Departments* (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the Governor
b. American Indian/Native American Tribal Governments (Federally Recognized) 
c. County Health Departments (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the mayor, county executive, or other equivalent governmental official (with jurisdictions over 500,000)
d. City or Township Health Departments (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the mayor, county executive, or other equivalent governmental official (with jurisdictions over 500,000)

*For this announcement, the term “State” includes the 50 states and the District of Columbia.

44. Are states with no local health departments eligible to apply for $350,000 per year as a state coordinated applicant or are they limited to applying for $250,000, as if they were a large county or city? 

Answer: Per the Award information on pg. 20, the ceiling for state coordinated applicants is $350,000.

45. Our State Department of Health manages all of our Local Health Units (LHU) in the state.  If the State Department of Health manages the LHU, would it be considered double-dipping of funds if we sub-award to the LHU (i.e., our self)? Is it appropriate for the State Department of Health to sub-award to other local entities (not LHU)? 

Answer: The grantee should not be the prime recipient and the sub-awardee under the same funded project.  

46. Which census year will CDC use to determine eligibility?
Answer: The applicant may choose to use the 2010 official census data, or more recent official population estimates if available.

47. Can funds be used to provide a stipend/scholarship to incentivize participation?

Answer: Stipends are allowable as cost-of-living allowances for trainees and fellows if permitted by a program’s statute authorizing or implementing regulations. The specific amounts may be established by policy. Generally, these payments are made according to a pre-established schedule based on the individual’s experience and level of training.  Therefore, based on this, stipends/scholarships are not permitted to be utilized to incentivize participation.

48. Can funds be used to buy equipment for a cafeteria or restaurant?
Answer: In most cases, awardees may not use HHS/CDC/ATSDR funding for the purchase of furniture or equipment (pg. 31).  Any such proposed spending must be clearly identified in the budget.  Awardees will not be permitted to use funding under this FOA for purchasing kitchen equipment for a cafeteria or a restaurant.  
49. Our state health department operates four public health hospitals and could address sodium reduction for both employees in the public health hospital workplace and for the people whom the hospitals serve. The hospitals are in four different locations throughout the state, but will accept all who are state residents. Generally, the patients served represent the most vulnerable and diverse populations of the state. Seventy-percent of grant funds would go to the selected public health hospitals. Does this meet the FOA’s requirements for venue and target populations?
Answer:  Per the FOA, An official state health department (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the Governor, must include at least 2 small city/county or rural community sub-applicants.  For this announcement, the term “State” includes the 50 states and the District of Columbia. The term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below.  If a state does not have local health departments, the state may apply in collaboration with at least 2 other small city/ county or rural community sub-applicants. Therefore, if a state does have local health departments, a local health department must be the sub-applicant.  Local health departments could in-turn partner or sub-contract with hospitals.  
50. Our state health department could partner with one of the large non-profit residential treatment providers in the state that are funded either by the Department of Mental Health or Department of Developmental Services. In partnership with residential providers, our state health department would use 70% of its grant funds to address sodium use both for employees of the organizations as well as the people served in residential settings, where meals are prepared by either staff or residents. Many residents are vulnerable to morbidity and early mortality due to a variety of factors, including poor health habits and diet. Does this approach meet the FOA’s requirements for venue and target populations?
Answer:  Per the FOA, An official state health department (or its bona fide agent), or its equivalent, as designated by the Governor, must include at least 2 small city/county or rural community sub-applicants.  For this announcement, the term “State” includes the 50 states and the District of Columbia. The term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below.  If a state does not have local health departments, the state may apply in collaboration with at least 2 other small city/ county or rural community sub-applicants. It would be permissible for sub-applicants to consist of the Department of Mental Health or Department of Developmental Services if these agencies are considered local health departments.  A local health department must be the sub-applicant.  Local health departments could in-turn partner or sub-contract with other agencies.
51. If a federally-recognized tribe chooses to not apply on its own for this FOA, may a state coordinated application include the tribe as a sub-applicant?
Answer: Yes, the state may apply with Federally-recognized tribal health departments as one or both sub-recipients, as long as the entity meets the definitions provided in the FOA.  Per the FOA, states must apply with at least 2 Small City/County and Rural Community applicants.  For this FOA, the term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below (pg. 21).  
52. If we apply for the sodium FOA as a state agency, can a tribal health department be a sub-applicant or are they only eligible to be the applicant?
Answer: Yes, the state may apply with Federally-recognized tribal health departments as one or both sub-recipients, as long as the entity meets the definitions provided in the FOA.  Per the FOA, states must apply with at least 2 Small City/County and Rural Community applicants.  For this FOA, the term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below (pg. 21).  
53. If a county health department with a jurisdiction of greater than 500,000 people chooses to not apply on its own for this FOA, may a state coordinated application include that county health department as a sub-applicant?
Answer: No. States must apply with Small City/County and Rural Community applications.  For this FOA, the term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below (pg. 21).  

54. Is it permissible for a state coordinated application to have a reach greater than 500,000 people as long as no one sub-applicant county health department does not have a jurisdiction of greater than 500,000? 
Answer: Yes. This would be acceptable.  
55. Our state does not have autonomous local health depts. We can focus on 2 large geographic areas by funding 2 sub recipients that have statewide reach but work with them to concentrate efforts on the same 2 geographic areas. The same venues would be addressed in the 2 geographic areas impacting sodium reduction for our residents. Would this be acceptable for the 70% going to sub recipient funding?
Answer: Each State-Coordinated Application must include at least 2 small city/county or rural community sub-applicants.  For this announcement, the term “State” includes the 50 states and the District of Columbia. The term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below.  If a state does not have local health departments, the state may apply in collaboration with at least 2 other small city/ county or rural community sub-applicants.  Therefore, if the state does not have local health departments, the state may identify 2 community sub recipients in 2 geographic regions.  
56. If a state is applying for $350,000, should the 15% come off the top before splitting up the 30% for applicant and 70% for sub recipients, and can the state retain this 15% for evaluation? In other words 15% of $350,000 = $52,500 for evaluation. And then $297,500 remains with $208,250 (70%) going out to the 2 sub recipients? Is this correct accounting, assuming that the state is responsible for the evaluation? If not correct, then how should the 15% evaluation be accounted for regarding the state and sub recipients?
Answer: Per page 13 of the FOA, State awardees must award at least 70% of the total grant funding to local sub-awardees. In addition to this requirement, per page 17 of the FOA, 15% of total funding must be allocated to evaluation activities.  The awardee may choose to include all or some of this 15% in the sub-award(s), but there is no requirement that the 15% must be included in the sub-award(s). 70% of the total funding must be awarded to sub-awardees, regardless of if evaluation activities are funded at the state or the sub-recipient level.
57. Can the 15% of the evaluation be a part of the 70% or does it have to be separate from the 70% that goes to the local/city health departments?
Answer: Per page 13 of the FOA, State awardees must award at least 70% of the total grant funding to local sub-awardees. In addition to this requirement, per page 17 of the FOA, 15% of total funding must be allocated to evaluation activities.  The awardee may choose to include all or some of this 15% in the sub-award(s), but there is no requirement that the 15% must be included in the sub-award(s). 

58. A county in our State recently expressed interest in participating in the sodium grant project, but their population is just over 500,000 residents. Would we be able to single out one city (population 125,000) within this county as a sub-grantee? We would still work with the local health department, but efforts would be focused on one city in that county.
Answer: For this FOA, The term “small city/county” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population between 50,000 – 500,000 people.  The term “rural area” is defined as a local health department that serves a jurisdiction with a population of 50,000 people and below.  Therefore if the sub-recipient is a city health department that meets either of these definitions, it would meet an eligible sub-applicant.
59. We have selected to work with a Early Childhood Program, which has three meal sites and an Elder Services Program, which has five meal sites, to focus our sodium reduction efforts.  Would these be considered two separate priority venues or do we need to select two  distinct categories, i. e. worksites, government and private programs that provide food to congregate populations, independent, and or institutionalized settings?
Answer: Per the FOA, Priority venues include: government and private worksites; government and private programs that purchase and provide food to congregate populations (e.g., senior meal programs, pre-schoolers, people in institutionalized settings, etc.); hospitals; and independent (i.e., non-chain) restaurants (pg. 8).  An applicant may choose to propose to identify congregate populations as one venue, or may choose to identify two types of congregate settings as the two venues in which they will work.  
60. Related to part b. iii of the Organizational Capacity to Execute the Approach, if we are not going to be contracting out (we are a Local Health Department) where do these 4 points get reassigned?

Answer: All applicants will be scored on the ability to award contracts in a timely manner.  Although there is no requirement for large local health departments to contract out any services or activities, all applicants should be able to demonstrate the capacity to award contracts in a timely manner in the event that the award recipient chooses to contract out any activities or services.

61. Can funding be used for to purchase and distribute incentives such as gift cards for participation in grant activities, such as focus groups?  

Answer: Incentive payments to volunteers or patients participating in a grant-supported project or program are allowable. Incentive payments to individuals to motivate them to take advantage of grant-supported health care or other services are allowable if within the scope of an approved project.

62. In the FOA it says the total length of the work plan should not exceed 10 pages for each applicant and sub-applicant. As a State Health Department applying with 2 sub-applicants, would we have a total of 3 work plans at 10 pages each?  Does the State Health Department have their own 10-page work plan with state-level activities in addition to the 2 sub-applicants’ work plans?

Answer: The total length for the work plan (for all three years) should not exceed 10 pages each per applicant and sub-applicant (if applicable).  The work plan(s) should describe how the applicant and sub-applicants (if applicable) intend to implement all of the selected strategies and activities to achieve short-term and intermediate outcomes of the FOA.  The 10 pages is a limit not a minimum requirement.  The expectation is that each applicant, including state applicants and sub-applicants would have separate work plans.

63. Does the work plan include the evaluation?  Or, is the evaluation a separate document to be uploaded as such?

Answer: The work plan is separate from the evaluation plan. Applicants may describe evaluation activities in the work plan if appropriate.  Please refer back to section ii Applicant Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan for complete details on what is to be included in the evaluation plan. Applicants may upload the separate evaluation plan attachment in www.grants.gov. 

64. Currently we plan to include a short section on performance monitoring and evaluation in the body of the narrative and a more detailed evaluation plan as an attachment. Do we need to address all the requirements listed on pages 17 and 18 within the narrative or can we refer to the detailed evaluation plan?

Answer: Applicants should address the requirements listed on pages 17 and 18 (section ii Applicant Evaluation and Performance Measurement Plan) of the FOA in the evaluation plan. The 15 pages for the evaluation and performance measurement plan is separate from the 18 pages of the project narrative.  

65. On page 30 of this FOA, it indicates "restrictions on food purchases", in the Funding Restrictions section---item 14, from page 29.  Are there any exceptions to this restriction? We are thinking of assisting with the purchases of replacement and new food ingredients for one of our venues. This subsidy would be reduced during each grant year.

Answer:  In most cases, awardees may not use HHS/CDC/ATSDR funding for the purchase of food (item #14, under section D of the FOA “Restrictions on Food Purchases”).  Awardees will not be permitted to use funding under this FOA for purchasing food or ingredients for proposed venues implementing sodium reduction interventions. 
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